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A TIF Joint Review Board Meeting of the Village of Freeburg will be held at the

Municipal Center, 14 Southgate Center, Freeburg, Illinois, on Tuesday, November 10,
2015, at 10:00 a.m.

TIF JOINT REVIEW BOARD MEETING

Items To Be Reviewed
A. Old Business

1. Approval of November 10, 2014 Minutes
B. New Business

1. Review of 2015 TIF Report
C, General Concerns
5 Public Participation

E; Adjourn

VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETINGS ARE HELD ON THE FIRST AND THIRD MONDAY OF EVERY MONTH
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Joint Review Board Meeting
Monday, November 10, 2014 at 1:30 p.m.

The meeting of the Joint Review Board for the TIF was called to order by Frank
Heiligensten at 1:30 p.m. on Monday, November 10, 2014, in the Municipal Center. Those in
attendance were Frank Heiligenstein representing St. Clair County, Mark Janssen representing
Freeburg District 70, Marianne Recker and Tony Miller representing Freeburg Township, Jim
Gehrs representing Southwestern Illinois College, Vicki Helms and Holly Zipfel representing
Freeburg Area Library, Barb Borger, representing Freeburg Park District, Theodore Mueller
representing Freeburg Fire Protection District, Village Administrator Tony Funderburg and
Office Manager Julie Polson. Guest present: Tom Carpenter.

A. OLD BUSINESS: Ms. Vicki Helms motioned to approve the November 10, 2013 minutes and
Mr. Mark Janssen seconded the motion. All voting yea, the motion carried.

B. NEW BUSINESS:

1. Review of Yearly TIF Report: Village Administrator Tony Funderburg advised that
the yearly report has been filed. He stated the TIF bonds were refinanced earlier this
year. The life of the bonds was extended by one year. Our yearly payment is
approximately $190,000 and we are currently bringing in about $220,000 in property
taxes per year. This does not include any property tax monies that will be brought in
from O'Reillys. Tony confirmed our goal is to pay down the bonds as quickly as
possible.

By refinancing the TIF bonds, we will save approximately $600,000. All of the property
tax collected from the TIF district will go to paying down the bonds. Tony said these bonds
were only set up to pay the bonds. They cannot be used for any other improvement to the TIF.
Mark Janssen stated he likes the path the Village is going with paying off the bonds down more
quickly.

Frank Heiligenstein asked if the Village has any future TIF projects in the works and
Tony said he doesn’t know where that comment came from. He said he attended a previous
meeting regarding economic development and there may have been a brief mention of a TIF to
help with improvements for the buildings within the current TIF. Tony advised our next focus
is the Comprehensive Plan and getting one in place. He advised the committee that Joe Koppeis
has filed a request to have his tax assessment lowered. Julie advised the Board of Review
hearing will be held December 8, 2014 at 1:30 p.m.
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C. GENERAL CONCERNS: None.

D. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: None.

E. ADJOURN: Ms. Vicki Helms motioned to adjourn the meeting at 1:44 p.m. and Mr. Mark
Janssen seconded the motion. All voting aye, the motion carried.

jus Fobson

Julie Polson
Office Manager
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FY 2015

ANNUAL TAX INCREMENT FINANCE STATE OF ILLINOIS
i - COMPTROLLER
- LESLIE GEISSLER MUNGER

Name of Municipality:  Village of Freeburg Reporting Fiscal Year: 2015
County: St. Clair Fiscal Year End: 3/31/2015
Unit Code: 088/070/32
] TIF Administrator Contact Information —I
First Name: Tony Last Name: Funderburg

Address: 14 Southgate Center Title: Village Administrator

Telephone: 618-539-5705 City: Freeburg Zip: 62243

E-mail-

Mobile 618-402-6466 required tfunderburg@freeburg.com

Mobile Bestwayto _ x  Email Phone
Provider  AT&T contact Mobile Mail

| attest to the best of my knowledge, this report of the redevelopment project areas in: City/Village of

is complete and accurate at the end of this reporting Fiscal year under the Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act
[65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-3 et. seq.] Or the Industrial Jobs Recovery Law [65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-10 et. seq.]

P {*eJ.':-J\
lo/iG/ZoiS—
Written signatule of TIF Administralor —— ‘ Date

Section 1 (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (1.5) and 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (1.5)*)
FILL OUT ONE FOR EACH TIF DISTICT
Name of Redevelopment Project Area Date Designated Date Terminated

North State Street 12/6/2004

*All statutory citations refer to one of two sections of the lllinois Municipal Code: the Tax Increment Allocation
Redevelopment Act [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-3 et. seq.] or the Industrial Jobs Recovery Law [65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-10 et. seq.]



SECTION 2 [Sections 2 through 5 must be completed for each redevelopment project area listed in Section 1.]
FY 2015

Name of Redevelopment Project Area: North State Street
Primary Use of Redevelopment Project Area*:

If "Combination/Mixed” List Component Types:

Under which section of the lllinois Municipal Code was Redevelopment Project Area designated? (check one):

Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act _ x_ Industrial Jobs Recovery Law

No Yes

Were there any amendments to the redevelopment plan, the redevelopment project area, or the State
Sales Tax Boundary? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (1) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (1)]

If yes, please enclose the amendment labeled Attachment A X
Certification of the Chief Executive Officer of the municipality that the municipality has complied with all[ff =

of the requirements of the Act during the preceding fiscal year. [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (3) and 5/11-74.6
22 (d) (3)]

Please enclose the CEO Certification labeled Attachment B

Opinion of legal counsel that municipality is in compliance with the Act. [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (4) and
5/11-74.6-22 (d) (4)]

Please enclose the Legal Counsel Opinion labeled Attachment C

Were there any activities undertaken in furtherance of the objectives of the redevelopment plan,
including any project implemented in the preceding fiscal year and a description of the activities
undertaken? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (7) (A and B) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (7) (A and B)]

If yes, please enclose the Activities Statement labeled Attachment D

Were any agreements entered into by the municipality with regard to the disposition or redevelopment
of any property within the redevelopment project area or the area within the State Sales Tax Boundary?
[65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d} (7) (C) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (7) (C}]

If yes, please enclose the Agreement(s) labeled Attachment E X
Is there additional information on the use of all funds received under this Division and steps taken by the
municipality to achieve the objectives of the redevelopment plan? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (7) (D) and
5/11-74.6-22 (d) (7) (D)]

If yes, please enclose the Additional Information labeled Attachment F X
Did the municipality's TIF advisors or consultants enter into contracts with entities or persons that have
received or are receiving payments financed by tax increment revenues produced by the same TIF? [65
ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d} (7) (E) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (7) (E)]

If yes, please enclose the contract(s) or description of the contract(s) labeled Attachment G X

Were there any reports or meeting minutes submitted to the municipality by the joint review board? [65
ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (7) (F) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (7) (F)]

If yes, please enclose the Joint Review Board Report labeled Attachment H X
Were any obligations issued by municipality? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (8) (A) and
5/11-74.6-22 (d) (8) (A)]

If yes, please enclose the Official Statement labeled Attachment | X
Was analysis prepared by a financial advisor or underwriter setting forth the nature and term of
obligation and projected debt service including required reserves and debt coverage? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-
5 (d) (8) (B) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (8) (B)]

If yes, please enclose the Analysis labeled Attachment J X
Cumulatively, have deposits from any source equal or greater than $100,000 been made into the special
tax allocation fund? 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (2) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (2)

If yes, please enclose Audited financial statements of the special tax allocation fund

labeled Attachment K X
Cumulatively, have deposits of incremental taxes revenue equal to or greater than $100,000 been made
into the special tax allocation fund? [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (9) and 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (9)]

If yes, please enclose a certified letter statement reviewing compliance with the Act labeled
Attachment L X
A list of all intergovernmental agreements in effect in FY 2010, to which the municipality is a part, and an
accounting of any money transferred or received by the municipality during that fiscal year pursuant to
those intergovernmental agreements. [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (10)]

If yes, please enclose list only of the intergovernmental agreements labeled Attachment M X

* Types include: Central Business District, Retail, Other Commercial, Industrial, Residential, and Combination/Mixed.




SECTION 3.1 - (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (5) and 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (5))
Provide an analysis of the special tax allocation fund.

FY 2015
TIF NAME: North State Street

Fund Balance at Beginning of Reporting Period

B 336,208 |

Revenue/Cash Receipts Deposited in Fund During Reporting FY:

Reporting Year

Cumulative*

% of Total

Property Tax Increment

3 234,314

3 1,472,860

31%

State Sales Tax Increment

S 44,696

S 571,362

12%

Local Sales Tax Increment

0%

State Utility Tax Increment

0%

Local Utility Tax Increment

0%

Interest

S 121

$ 70,421

1%

Land/Building Sale Proceeds

S 2,050,000

43%

Bond Proceeds

0%

Transfers from Municipal Sources

s 557,880

$ 557,880

12%

Private Sources

0%

Other (identify source ; if multiple other sources, attach

schedule)

0%

Total Amount Deposited in Special Tax Allocation
Fund During Reporting Period

Cumulative Total Revenues/Cash Receipts

Total Expenditures/Cash Disbursements (Carried forward from Section 3.2)
Distribution of Surplus

Total Expenditures/Disbursements

NET INCOME/CASH RECEIPTS OVER/(UNDER) CASH DISBURSEMENTS

FUND BALANCE, END OF REPORTING PERIOD*

*must be completed where current or prior
year(s) have reported funds

S 4,722,523

100%

[ $ 837,011 |

I
’ $ 747,619J
I il
[ $ 747,619 |
[ $ 89,392 |
B 425,600 |

* if there Is a positive fund balance at the end of the reporting period, you must complete Section 3.3

SURPLUS*/(DEFICIT)(Carried forward from Section 3.3)

[$  (1,354,400)|




SECTION 3.2 A- (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 {d) (5) and 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (5))

FY 2015
TIF NAME: North State Street

ITEMIZED LIST OF ALL EXPENDITURES FROM THE SPECIAL TAX ALLOCATION FUND
(by category of permissible redevelopment cost, amounts expended during reporting period}

FOR AMOUNTS >$10,000 SECTION 3.2 B MUST BE COMPLETED

Category of Permissible Redevelopment Cost [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-3 (q) and 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-
10 (o)]

Amounts

Reporting Fiscal Year

1. Costs of studies, administration and professional services—Subsections (g)(1) and (o) (1)

2. Cost of marketing sites—Subsections (g)(1.6) and (0)(1.6)

site improvement costs. Subsections (g){2), (0)(2) and {0)(3)

3.Property assembly: property acquisition, building demolition, site preparation and environmental :

Subsection (g)(3) and (0)(4)

A Costs of rehabilitation, reconstruction, repair or remodeling of existing public or private bulldings.[= |

5. Costs of construction of public works and improvements. Subsection (g)(4) and (0)(5)

Recovery TIFs ONLY

B.Costs of removing contaminants required by environmental laws or rules {0)(6) - Industrial Jobs| =~




SECTION 3.2 A

PAGE 2

7. Cost of job training and refraining, including "welfare to work™ programs Subsection (q)(5), (0)(7)]

and (0)(12)

8.Financing costs related to obligations issued by the municipality. Subsection (q) (6) and (0)(8)

474174 |

Past Development Payoff ;
Principal 170,000 | oo
Interest and Fees

103,445 |

T 747619

9. Approved taxing district's capital costs. Subsection (g){7) and (o)(9)

10. Cost of Reimbursing school districts for their increased costs caused by TIF assisted housing|

projects. Subsection (g)(7.5) - Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment TIFs ONLY

11. Relocation costs. Subsection (q)(8) and (0)(10)

12.Payments in lieu of taxes as defined in Subsections 11-74.43(m) and 11-74.6-10(k). Subsection|

(a)(@) and (0}(11)

13, Costs of Job training, retraining advanced vocational or career education provided by other|~

taxing bodies. Subsection (q)(10) and (0)(12)




SECTION 3.2 A
PAGE 3

14. Costs of reimbursing private developers for interest expenses incurred on approved| '
redevelopment projects. Subsection (g)(11)(A-E) and (0)(13)(A-E) g

15. Costs of construction of new housing units for low income and very low-income households. i
Subsection (q)(11)(F) - Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment TIFs ONLY s

16. Cost of day care services and operational costs of day care centers. Subsection (q) (11.5)
Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment TIFs ONLY

[TOTAL ITEMIZED EXPENDITURES [s 747,619 |




Section 3.2B
FY 2015
TIF NAME: North State Street

List all vendors, including other municipal funds, that were paid in excess of $10,000 during the current
reporting year.

There were no vendors, including other municipal funds, paid in excess of
$10,000 during the current reporting period.

Name Service Amount

Freeburg Development Corporation Pay off TIF Note to Developer S 474,174.00

2005 Tax Increment Revenue Bonds | $ 1,360,000.00




SECTION 3.3 - (65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (5) 65 ILCS 11-74.6-22 (d) (5))
Breakdown of the Balance in the Special Tax Allocation Fund At the End of the Reporting Period
FY 2015
TIF NAME: North State Street

FUND BALANCE, END OF REPORTING PERIOD [ 425,600 |

Amount of Original
Issuance Amount Designated

1. Description of Debt Obligations

2014 General Obligation Bonds S 1,950,000 | $ 1,780,000
3 _
3 -

Total Amount Designated for Obligations [ $ 1,950,000 | $ 1,780,000

2. Description of Project Costs to be Paid

Total Amount Designated for Project Costs [$ - |
TOTAL AMOUNT DESIGNATED [$ 1,780,000 |
SURPLUS*/(DEFICIT) [ $ (1,354,400}

* NOTE: If a surplus is calculated, the municipality may be required to repay the amount to overlapping taxing



SECTION 4 [65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (6) and 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (6)]
FY 2015

TIF NAME: North State Street
Provide a description of all property purchased by the municipality during the reporting fiscal year within the
redevelopment project area.

X No property was acquired by the Municipality Within the Redevelopment Project Area

Property Acquired by the Municipality Within the Redevelopment Project Area

Property (1):

Street address:

Approximate size or description of property:
Purchase price:

Seller of property:

Property (2):

Street address:

Approximate size or description of property:
Purchase price:

Seller of property:

Property (3):

Street address:

Approximate size or description of property:
Purchase price:

Seller of property:

Property (4):

Street address:

Approximate size or description of property:
Purchase price:

Seller of property:




SECTION 5 - 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5 (d) (7) (G) and 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22 (d) (7) (G)

FY 2015
TIF NAME: North State Street

PAGE 1

SECTION 5 PROVIDES PAGES 1-3 TO ACCOMMODATE UP TO 25 PROJECTS. PAGE 1 MUST BE INCLUDED WITH TIF
REPORT. PAGES 2-3 SHOULD BE INCLUDED ONLY IF PROJECTS ARE LISTED ON THESE PAGES

Check here if NO projects were undertaken by the Municipality Within the Redevelopment Project Area:

ENTER total number of projects undertaken by the Municipality Within the Redevelopment Project Area

and list them in detail below*.

2

TOTAL:

11/1/99 to Date

Estimated Investment
for Subsequent Fiscal
Year

Total Estimated to
Complete Project

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

6,000,000

$ -

$ 6,000,000

Public Investment Undertaken

2,205,269

$ 150,000

$ 2,212,577

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

231/43

2 42/59

Project 1: *IF PROJECTS ARE LISTED NUMBER MUST BE ENTERED ABOVE

Freeburg Center Commercial Retail

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

5,000,000

$ 5,000,000

Public Investment Undertaken

2,205,269

$ 150,000

$ 212,577

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

2 4115

23 25/48

Project 2:
Medical Office

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

1,000,000

3 1,000,000

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 3:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 4:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 5:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment

Project 6:

Private Investment Undertaken (See Instructions)

Public Investment Undertaken

Ratio of Private/Public Investment




Optional: Information in the following sections is not required by law, but would be helpful in evaluating the performance
of TIF in lllinois. *even though optional MUST be included as part of complete TIF report

SECTION 6

FY 2015

TIF NAME: North State Street

Provide the base EAV (at the time of designation) and the EAV for the year reported for the redevelopment project area
Year redevelopment
project area was Reporting Fiscal Year
designated Base EAV EAV

I |

List all overlapping tax districts in the redevelopment project area.
If overlapping taxing district received a surplus, list the surplus.

The overlapping taxing districts did not receive a surplus.

Surplus Distributed from redevelopment
Overlapping Taxing District project area to overlapping districts
S &
S x
) -
S =
S =
S &
S -
S o
S 2
S £
S -
S =
S =
S =
S -
SECTION 7
‘Provide information about job creation and retention
Description and Type
Number of Jobs Number of Jobs (Temporary or
Retained Created Permanent) of Jobs Total Salaries Paid

W | [ || [ |40
'

SECTION 8
Provide a general description of the redevelopment project area using only major boundaries:
[500 and 600 blocks on the East side of North State Street

Optional Documents Enclosed
Legal description of redevelopment project area attached
Map of District attached




REVISED LEGAL DESCRIPTION

North State Street Redevelopment Project Area
Job No. 03072-01
October 29, 2004

Beginning at a the southernmost corner of Lot | of the Resubdivision of Lot 1,
Meadow Brook Estates; '

thence along the southeasterly line of said Lot 1, North 36 degrees 46 minutes 37
seconds East a distance of 386.07 feet to the northeasterly corner of Lot 2 of said
Resubdivision Plat;

thence easterly along the south line of Lot 55 of Meadow Brook Estates, North 85
degrees 51 minutes 40 seconds East a distance of 580.59 to a point on the centerline
of an existing sanitary sewer line;

thencein a southerly direction along said existing sanitary sewer line South 04

thence along a curve to the left having a radius of | 75.00 feet for an arc length of
100.41 feet, also having a chord bearing of South 01 degrees 20 minutes (7 seconds
East for a chord distance of 99.04 feet to a point;

thence South 85 degrees 48 minutes 03 seconds West a distance of 160.29 feet to a

Route 13/1 5);

thence continuing on the previous course to the southw¢ster1y right of way line of
North State Street;

thence along said right of way line for a distance of approximately 770 teet 1o g



point that is the intersection of said southwesterly right of way line with the
prolongation of southeasterly line of the aforementioned Lot | of the Resubdivision
of Lot 1 of Meadow Brook Estates;

thence crossing the right of way of said North State Street in a northeasterly

direction to the Point of Beginning of the tract herein described. Said tract contains
approximately 17 acres, more or less,

This description was prepared from tax maps and concept displays and is not
intended for recording or accurate depictions of dimensions or area.

H:A0307201 -Freeburg Market Place\Legals\For PGAV\FrcfimCommercial"rcv( 10-29-04).doc
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Attachment A

THIRD AMENDMENT TO REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT

THIS THIRD AMENDMENT TO REDEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”)
is made and entered into as of April 30, 2014 (the *“Closing Date”), by and among FREEBURG
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, an Illinois corporation (the “Developer”), and VILLAGE OF
FREEBURG, ST. CLAIR COUNTY, ILLINOIS, a municipal corporation and political subdivision of
the State of Illinois (the “Village™).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Village and the Developer entered into an Agreement (the “Original
Redevelopment Agreement”) dated October 4, 2004, as amended and supplemented by a First
Amendment to Agreement (the “2005 Amendment”) dated March 7, 2005 and a First Amendment to
Redevelopment Agreement (the “2010 Amendment”) dated June 28, 2010 (the Original Redevelopment
Agreement, the 2005 Amendment and the 2010 Amendment, together with this Agreement, being
collectively referred to herein as the “Redevelopment Agreement”) in connection with the Village’s
North State Street Redevelopment Project Area (the “Redevelopment Project Area”); and

WHEREAS, subject to the provisions hereof, the Village has determined to issue and
concurrently herewith will issue its $1,950,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds (Tax Increment
Alternate Revenue Source) Series 2014 (the “Bonds”), the proceeds of which will be used to (1) refund
all of the Village’s outstanding Tax Increment Revenue Bonds, Series 2005 (North State Street
Redevelopment Project Area) (the “Series 2005 Bonds™), being all of the Series 2005 Bonds maturing on
November 1, 2024 currently outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $1,360,000 (the “Refunded
Bonds”); (2) refund all of the Village’s outstanding (a) Tax Revenue Note dated June 21, 2010 payable to
the Developer maturing on January 19, 2027 in the amount of $117,130.61, which includes interest
thereon accruing through the Closing Date, the original proceeds of which were used to reimburse the
Developer for certain relocation costs related to the Redevelopment Project Area and (b) Tax Revenue
Note dated June 21, 2010 payable to the Developer maturing on January 19, 2027 in the amount of
$357,042.96, which includes interest thereon accruing through the Closing Date, the original proceeds of
which were used to reimburse the Developer for certain construction costs, including costs to construct a
traffic light within the Redevelopment Project Area (collectively, the “Refunded Notes” and together
with the Refunded Bonds, the “Refunded Obligations”; and (3) pay certain expenses relating to the
issuance of the Bonds; and

WHEREAS, as a condition to the Village’s refunding of the Refunded Obligations, the Village
and the Developer wish to confirm the continued effectiveness of the Redevelopment Agreement and
clarify certain matters therein; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, for the mutual agreements, promises
and covenants herein contained, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of
which are hereby acknowledged, it is hereby agreed as follows:

1. Redevelopment Agreement. The Village and the Developer expressly agree that Section
9 of the Redevelopment Agreement be amended and restated in its entirety as follows:

Section 9. Appeal of Assessment. The Village and Developer agree to
cooperate and take all reasonable actions necessary to cause the TIF Revenues to be paid
into the Special Allocation Fund, including the Village’s enforcement and collection of

(Third Amendment to Redevelopment Agreement)



all such payments through all reasonable and ordinary legal means of enforcement. The
Developer shall provide for itself and use all reasonable efforts to cause all owners,
tenants or other occupants in the Redevelopment Project Area (or their heir(s),
successor(s) in interest and/or assigns) to supply or cause to be supplied to Developer,
within thirty (30) days of receipt thereof, copies of each bill and evidence of payment for
ad valorem property taxes levied upon the Property by any and all taxing districts or
municipal corporations having the power to tax real property within the Redevelopment
Project Area. Any purchaser or transferee of real property located within the
Redevelopment Project Area, and any lessee or other user of real property located within
the Redevelopment Project Area required to pay TIF Revenues, shall use all reasonable
efforts to timely furnish to the Village such documentation as is required by this Section
9. So long as any TIF Obligation is outstanding, the Developer shall cause such
obligation to be a covenant running with the land and shall be enforceable as is such
purchaser, transferee, lessee or other user of such real property were originally a party to
and bound by the Redevelopment Agreement. Further, so long as any TIF Obligation is
outstanding no owner, tenant, occupant (or their heir(s), successor(s) in interest and/or
assigns) shall challenge or appeal the ad valorem property taxes assessed or levied
against real or personal property located within the Redevelopment Project Area seeking
a reduction in an amount below that which is necessary to generate revenues sufficient to
meet the debt service obligations of the TIF Obligations.

2, TIF Obligations. The Village and the Developer expressly agree that the Bonds and any
obligations payable from (1) incremental taxes derived from the Redevelopment Project Area (“Pledged
Incremental Property Taxes”), arising under Section 5/11-74.4-8 of the TIF Act of the State of Illinois,
as amended, and/or (2) that portion of the Illinois Retailer’s Occupation, Service Occupation and Use Tax
derived from the Redevelopment Project Area (“Pledged Sales Taxes” and together with the Pledged
Incremental Property Taxes, the “TIF Revenues”) or the proceeds of which refund or refinance any of
the foregoing are and shall be considered “TIF Obligations” pursuant to the Redevelopment Agreement.

3. Ratification and Confirmation. Except as expressly set forth herein, the Redevelopment
Agreement in all other respects is hereby confirmed and ratified as of the date hereof. The
Redevelopment Agreement is and shall remain the binding obligation of Village and the Developer, and
except to the extent set forth in this Agreement, all of the terms, provisions, conditions, agreements,
covenants, representations, warranties and powers contained in the Redevelopment Agreement shall be
and remain in full force and effect and the same are hereby ratified and confirmed.

4, Conflicting Provisions. In the event of any inconsistency between the terms and
provisions of the Redevelopment Agreement, the terms and provisions of this Agreement shall prevail.

5. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, all of which
shall be deemed originals and with the same effect as if all parties hereto had signed the same document.
All of such counterparts shall be construed together and shall constitute one instrument, but in making
proof, it shall only be necessary to produce one such counterpart.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank]

(Third Amendment to Redevelopment Agreement) -2-



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed
as of the year and date first set forth above.

VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS,
ST. CLAIR COUNTY, ILLINOIS:

By: —:;%)

Name: Seth Speiser
Title: President

ATTEST:

By:

Name? Jerfy/Lynn Menard

Title: Village Clerk
FREEBURG DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION:
By:
Name:
Title:

ATTEST:

By:

Name:

Title:

(Third Amendment to Redevelopment Agreement) S-1



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed

as of the year and date first set forth above.

ATTEST:

By:
Name: Jerry Lynn Menard
Title:  Village Clerk

ATTEST:

By: o r
Name: Patricia A. Koppeis
Title: Secretary

(Third Amendment to Redevelopment Agreement)

VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS,
ST. CLAIR COUNTY, ILLINOIS:

By:
Name: Seth Speiser
Title: President

FREEBURG DEVELOPMENT

CORPORATION:
By: {,ﬁg é& k!mﬁ .
Name: JoSephfG. Koppei

Title: President

S-1



VILLAGE PRESIDENT
Seth Speiser

VILLAGE CLERK
Jerry Menard

VILLAGE TRUSTEES
Mathew Trout

Dean Pruett

Elizabeth Niebruegge
Lisa Meehling

Ray Matchett, Jr.
Mike Blaies

September 7, 2015

VILLAGE ADMINISTRATOR
Tony Funderburg

VILLAGE OF FREEBURG

FREEBURG MuNICIPAL CENTER ;ILLAEEVTREASURER
|4 SOUTHGATE CENTER, FREEBURG., IL 62243 ryan A. Vogel
PHONE: (618) 539-5545 FAX: (618) 539-5590 .PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR
John Tolan

Web Site: www.freeburg.com
POLICE CHIEF
Stanley Donald

VILLAGE ATTORNEY
Weilmuenster Law Group, P.C

Attachment B

IL Office of the Comptroller
Local Government Division

100 W.

Randolph Street, Suite 15-500

Chicago, IL. 60601

Re:  North State Street Redevelopment

Unit Code: 088/070/32

Project Area

To Whom it May Concern:

This will certify that, to the best of my knowledge, and based on my inquiry of

those directly responsible for reviewing the available records, that the Village of
Freeburg complied with the requirements of 65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-3, “Tax Increment
Allocation Redevelopment Act” during the fiscal year ended March 31, 2015.

Should you have any questions regarding this matter, please do not hesitate to
contact me at 618/539-5705.

Sincerely,

Village of Freeburg

- : ; ;‘-’“__'--{::
Seth Speiser
Village President

SES/ip

ce: File

VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETINGS ARE HELD ON THE FIRST AND THIRD MONDAY OF EVERY MONTH




Attachment C

WK

WEILM[{%CENSTER
KECK »c.

September 15, 2015

Mr. Tony Funderburg
Village Administrator
Village of Freeburg
Freeburg Municipal Center
14 Southgate Center
Freeburg, IL 62243

Re:  Tax Increment Financing District
Annual Report for Fiscal Year 2014-2015

Dear Tony,

Pursuant to y our request, I have reviewed various materials provided by the Village of
Freeburg with respect to the Tax Increment Financing District. Based upon my review of the
materials provided, it is my opinion that the Village of Freeburg, Illinois, is in compliance with
65 ILCS 5/11-74.4-5(d)(4) and 65 ILCS 5/11-74.6-22(d)(4) of the Illinois Municipal Code.

If you have any questions or wish to discuss this matter, please call me.

Sincerely,

WEILMUENSTER & KECK, P.C.

JBM/jls
). MICHAEL WEILMUENSTER * FREDERICK W, KECK J. BRIAN MANION | NATHANIEL O.BROWN ; THOMAS G. ZURLIENE
JmwBwallmuensterluw.com i fvk@wellmuenstediwcom | jbm@weilmuensteclawicom | nob@wellmuensterlaweom | tgz@weilmuenstarlaw.cons
Licensed in Wisiois amd Missouri | Licensed in Ifinots and Missouri | Liceused in Tlinois and Missouri i Licensed in Ifineds i Licensed in inois

3201 WRST MAIN | BELLEVILLE, IL 62226 | WEILMUENSTERLAW.COM | P 618-257-2222 | F 618-257-2030
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Attachment H
e EiI VILLAGE OF FREEBURG | oo 0

VILLAGE CLERK FREEBURG MUNICIPAL CENTER VILLAGE TREASURER
Jerry Menard . B . Vi
i ‘ 14 SOUTHGATE CENTER, FREEBURG, IL 62243 VBT, Yorr!
VILLAGE TRUSTEES PHONE: (618) 539-5545 . FAX: (618) 539-5590 PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

Ray Matchett, Jr. sy Yohn Tolan
Steve Smith Web Site: www.freeburg.com
POLICE CHIEF

Mike Blaies

Mathew Trout Stanley Donald

D(?an Pru&ttl TIF VILLAGE ATTORNEY
Eljzabeth Niebruegge Weilmuenster Law Group, P.C

Joint Review Board Meeting
Monday, November 10, 2014 at 1:30 p.m.

The meeting of the Joint Review Board for the TIF was called to order by Frank
Heiligensten at 1:30 p.m. on Monday, November 10, 2014, in the Municipal Center. Those in
attendance were Frank Heiligenstein representing St. Clair County, Mark Janssen representing
Freeburg District 70, Marianne Recker and Tony Miller representing Freeburg Township, Jim
Gehrs representing Southwestern Illinois College, Vicki Helms and Holly Zipfel representing
Freeburg Area Library, Barb Borger, representing Freeburg Park District, Theodore Mueller
representing Freeburg Fire Protection District, Village Administrator Tony Funderburg and
Office Manager Julie Polson. Guest present: Tom Carpenter.

A. OLD BUSINESS: Ms. Vicki Helms motioned to approve the November 10, 2013 minutes and
Mr. Mark Janssen seconded the motion. All voting yea, the motion carried.

B. NEW BUSINESS:

1. Review of Yearly TIF Report: Village Administrator Tony Funderburg advised that
the yearly report has been filed. He stated the TIF bonds were refinanced earlier this
year. The life of the bonds was extended by one year. Our yearly payment is
approximately $190,000 and we are currently bringing in about $220,000 in property
taxes per year. This does not include any property tax monies that will be brought in
from O'Reillys. Tony confirmed our goal is to pay down the bonds as quickly as
possible.

By refinancing the TIF bonds, we will save approximately $600,000. All of the property
tax collected from the TIF district will go to paying down the bonds. Tony said these bonds
were only set up to pay the bonds. They cannot be used for any other improvement to the TIF.
Mark Janssen stated he likes the path the Village is going with paying off the bonds down more

quickly.

Frank Heiligenstein asked if the Village has any future TIF projects in the works and
Tony said he doesn’t know where that comment came from. He said he attended a previous
meeting regarding economic development and there may have been a brief mention of a TIF to
help with improvements for the buildings within the current TIF. Tony advised our next focus
is the Comprehensive Plan and getting one in place. He advised the committee that Joe Koppeis
has filed a request to have his tax assessment lowered. Julie advised the Board of Review
hearing will be held December 8, 2014 at 1:30 p.m.

Joint Review Board Meeting Minutes
Monday, November 10, 2014
Page 1 of 2

VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETINGS ARE HELD ON THE FIRST AND THIRD MONDAY OF EVERY MONTH
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C. GENERAL CONCERNS: Nore.

D. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: None.

E. ADJOURN: Ms. Vicki Helms motioned to adjourn the meeting at 1:44 p.m. and Mr. Mark
Janssen seconded the motion. All voting aye, the motion carried.

i Foton-

Julie Polson
Office Manager

Joint Review Board Meeting
Monday, November 10, 2014
Page 2 of 2
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@ C. J. SCHLOSSER J. Terry Dooling

& CO.M[]LD).EXINY’y L.L.C. David M. Bartosiak

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Cindy A. Tefteller
Kevin J. Tepen

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Board
of Trustees of the Village of
Freeburg, Illinois:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Village of Freeburg, Illinois
as of and for the year ended March 31, 2015, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Village’s basic financial statements as listed in
the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the governmental
funds financial statements in accordance with the modified cash basis of accounting as
described in Note 1; this includes determining that the modified cash basis of accounting
is an acceptable basis for the presentation of the governmental fund financial statements
in the circumstances. Management is also responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the business-type and proprietary fund financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Management is also responsible for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud.

Auditor’s Respansibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by the management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

233 East Center Drive, P.O. Box 416 80 Edwardsville Professional Park One Westbury Drive, Suite 420
Alton, lllineis 62002 Edwardsville, [llinois 62025 St. Charles, Missouri 63301
(618) 465-7717 Fax (618) 465-7710 (618) 656-2146 Fax (618) 656-2147 (636) 723-7611 Fax (636) 947-4558
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities (modified cash
basis), the business-type activities (accrual basis), each major fund and the non-major
fund information of the Village of Freeburg, Illinois, as of March 31, 2015, and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows (Governmental
activities - modified cash basis, Business-type activities — accrual basis) thereof for the
year then ended in conformity with the basis of accounting described in Note 1.

Basis of Accounting

We draw attention to Note 1 of the financial statements, which describes the basis of
accounting. The financial statements are prepared on the modified cash basis of
accounting, which is a basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of Ametica, except for the Village's Proprietary Funds,
which have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. Our opinion is not modified
with respect to that matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 4 to 11, the schedule of funding progress
and employer contributions on page 38 and the budgetary comparison information on
page 37, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistenicy with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements,
and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.



Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements
that collectively comprise the Village of Freeburg, Illinois’ basic financial statements.
The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility
of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

C. 0. Sohboone T @ ti e

Certified Public Accountants
Alton, Illinois

August 15, 2015
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the Village of Freeburg, Illinois® (Village) annual audit presents a
management’s discussion and analysis of the Village’s financial activity during the fiscal
year ended March 31, 2015. The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is
designed to focus on current activities, resulting changes and currently known facts and
should be read in conjunction with the basic financial statements and footnotes.
Responsibility for the completeness and fairness of this information rests with the
Village.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the
Village’s basic financial statements. There are three components to the basic financial
statements:

1. Government-wide financial statements
2. Fund financial statements
3. Notes to the basic financial statements

This report also contains required supplementary information/other information in
addition to the basic financial statements.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCTAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad
overview of the Village’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The
government-wide financial statements exclude any fiduciary fund activities.

The government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Village that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities)
from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs
through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of
the Village include general government, public safety, highways and streets, sanitation
and development. The business-type activities include water, sewer, electric light and
power, and swimming pool.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Village’s assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Over time,
increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the Village is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Village’s net position
changed during the most recent fiscal year. Changes in net position are reported on the
modified cash basis of accounting for the governmental activities and the accrual basis of
accounting for the business-type activities.



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources
that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Village, like other state
and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Village can be divided into two
categories: governmental and proprietary.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essential functions
reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements, Because
the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with
similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide
financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of
the Village’s near-term financial decisions. Both the governmental fund statement of
assets, liabilities and fund balances arising from modified cash basis transactions and the
governmental fund statement of revenues and expenditures arising from modified cash
basis transactions provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between the
governmental funds and the government-wide governmental activities.

The Village maintains four individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental funds statement of assets, liabilities and fund balances
arising from modified cash basis transactions and in the governmental fund statement of
revenues and expenditures arising from modified cash basis transactions for the major
fund: General Fund. Data for the other nonmajor governmental funds are combined in the
supplementary information and reported in total in a separate column.

The Village adopts an annual budget for all governmental funds. A budgetary comparison
schedule for the General Fund has been provided to demonstrate legal compliance with
the adopted budget.

Proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions and the same
type of information presented as business-type activities in the government-wide
financial statements. The Village uses an enterprise fund to account for its water, sewer,
electric light and power, and swimming pool operations.

Notes to the basic financial statements, The notes provide additional information that is
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund
financial statements.

Required supplementary information/Other Information, The Village reports
budgetary comparison and retirement funding progress related to IMRF as required
supplementary information/other information following the notes to the financial
statements.

Other supplementary information. The combining fund statements, referred to earlier
in connection with non-major governmental funds, are presented immediately following
the required supplementary information.



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The Village has presented its financial statements under the reporting model pursuant to
Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 (GASB 34), Basic
Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local
Governments.

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the case of the Village, assets exceeded liabilities by $10,443,165 at
the close of the most recent fiscal year.

The largest portion of the Village’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets
(e.g., land, buildings, machinery, equipment and infrastructure), less any related debt
used 1o acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Village uses these capital assets
to provide services to citizens; consequentially, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the Village’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related
debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided
from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
ligbilities. The condensed statement of net position is as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Current and other assets § 1753479 0§ 1225697 0§ 4269519 § 4188184 § 6022998 § 5413881
Capital assets 790,266 744,455 11,516,659 12,089,558 12,306,925 12,834,013
Total assets 2,543,745 1,970,152 15,786,178 16,277,742 18,329,923 18,247,894
Long-term liabilities ’
outstanding 1,813,885 1,360,000 5,285,116 5,745,934 7,099,001 7,105,934
Other lizbilities 3,423 4,334 784,334 818,648 787,757 822,982
Total liabilities 1,817,308 1,364,334 6,069,450 6,564,582 7,886,758 7,928,916
Net position:
Invested in capital assets,
net of related debt 790,266 744,455 6,231,543 6,343,624 7,021,809 7,088,079
Restricted 706,997 620,509 - - 706,997 620,509
Unrestricted (770,826) (759,146) 3,485,185 3,369,536 2,714,359 2,610,390
Total net position ] 726437 § 605818 $ 0716728 § 9713060 § 10,443,165 § 10318978

Total net position increased $124,187 resulting in a balance of $10,443,165 as of March
31, 2015. Current assets, which include cash, investments and accounts receivable,
increased $609,117. Non-current assets decreased $527,088, due to current year
depreciation being in excess of additions. Total liabilities decreased $52,158 resulting in
a balance of $7,886,758 as of March 31, 2015, Outstanding debt, including long-term and
short-term portions, decreased $6,933 due to principal payments on the outstanding
bonds exceeding the new notes payable. Other liabilities decreased $35,225, due to a
decrease in accounts payable at the fiscal year end.



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG. ILLINQIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ANALYSIS OF NET POSITION
2015 2014
Analysis of Net Position Percent Amount Percent Amount
Net invested in capital assets 67.2% $ 7,021,809 68.7% $ 7,088,079
Restricted 6.8% 706,997 6.0% 620,509
Committed 0.3% 35,402 0.0% -
Unrestricted 25.7% 2,678,957 25.3% 2,610,390
Total net position 100.0% $ 10,443,165 100.0% $ 10,318,978

Total net position balances increased by $124,187 in fiscal year 2015 to a total ending
balance of $10,443,165. Capital net asset balances decreased by $66,270 in the current
year due to debt reductions and depreciation expense exceeding capital asset activity. The
unrestricted net position balances changed by the net income of operating activities. The
revenue and expenditure comparisons that comprise the current year increase follow.

REVENUE COMPARISON BY TYPE

Governmental Activities 2015 2014
Property tax § 665,670 $ 605,897
Sales and use tax 452,053 449,523
State income tax 412,333 454,854
Replacement tax 5,658 5,921
Charges for services 311,872 314,623
Telecommunications tax 108,713 129,333
Motor fuel tax 107,544 108,795
Utility tax 240,515 244,177
Investment income 8,591 7,614
Operating grants 62,928 76,729
Gain on disposal of assets 360,781 -
Miscellaneous 12,100 13,163
Total revenues $ 2,748,758 $ 2,410,629

Total revenues for the governmental activities increased approximately $338,125 for the
year ended March 31, 2015. The increase is mainly due to the sale of several properties in
the current year.

Business-type Activities 2015 2014

Water charges $ 847,216 $ 853,866
Sewer charges 475,692 473,464
Electric charges 4,966,783 4,993,078
Swimming pool charges 62,740 51,055
Capital/operating grants - 90,400
Property taxes 53,282 54,162
Investment income " 88,635 86,943
Total revenues $ 6,494,348 $ 6,603,868

Total revenues for the business-type activities decreased approximately $109,000 for the
year ended March 31, 2015. The Village had the largest increase in swimming pool
charges and the largest decreases in electric charges and in capital/operating grants in the
current year.



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

Governmental Activities

2015 2014

Expenditures by category Percent Amount Percent Amount

General government 103% § 271,833 11.1% $ 223,551
Public safety 41.5% 1,097,953 50.9% 1,021,102
Highways and streets 18.0% 476,846 21.9% 438,393
Sanitation 7.0% 186,281 9.7% 195,243
Development 17.9% 474,174 2.9% 57,561
Interest on long-term debt 5.1% 135,565 3.5% 70,300
Total expenditures 100.0%  § 2,642,652 100.0% $ 2,006,150

The Village reported an increase in expenses for governmental activities of $636,502.
The increase was due to the Village paying off redevelopment agreement notes with the
new bond issue, which is expensed in the development category. Public safety reported
the highest expenditure category with 42% of all governmental expenditures.

The above expenditure categories include amounts for depreciation expense on assets
purchased in the current and prior years. The breakdown by category is as follows:

2015 2014
General government $ 19,324 3 15,860
Public safety 33,226 17,412
Highways and sireets 24,333 23,303
Sanitation 1,335 1,335
Total depreciation § 78,218 $ 57,910

Total capital outlay expenditures in the governmental fund financial statements for the

current year totaled $127,595.

Operating Expenditures

Personal services

Confractual services
Electricity and water purchased
Supplies and materials

Heat, light and power
Depreciation

Total expenditures

Business-type Activities

2015 2014
Percent Amount Percent Amount
19.8% § 1,252,421 18.7% & 1,231,119
9.3% 588,071 9.9% 652,588
51.8% 3,283,124 51.7% 3,402,224
3.0% 187,320 4.4% 290,463
0.6% 36,493 0.4% 29,055
15.6% 991,539 14.9% 977,655
100.0% $ 6,338,968 100.0% $ 6,583,104

Expenses in the business-type activities decreased in total by $244,136. As in the prior
year, the largest categories of operating expense were for electricity and water purchases
which decreased $119,100 in the current year.



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FUNDS FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, the Village uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the Village’s governmental funds is to provide
information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assessing the Village’s financing requirements. In particular,
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net resources
available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the 2015, the Village’s governmental funds reported combined ending
fund balances of $1,714,654, an increase of $493,291 in comparison with the prior year.
A large portion of this balance constitutes unreserved, undesignated fund balance, which
is available for spending at the Village’s discretion. However, $706,997 (TIF Fund and
Special Revenue Funds) has been restricted for future debt payments and other restricted
expenditures. '

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Village. At the end of the current
fiscal year, the unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $1,007,657. This
balance increased $406,803 during the current year.

The TIF Fund increased $44,696 in the current year. The Motor Fuel Tax Fund reported
an increase of $41,214 for an ending balance of $298,512. The Impact Fees Fund
reported an increase of $578 in the current year for a fund balance of $27,581.

Proprietary fund. The Village’s proprietary funds provide the same information found
in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net position of the Waterworks, Sewer, Electric Light and Power, and
Swimming Pool funds at the end of the year amounted to $3,485,185, an increase of
$115,649 in comparison with prior year. Other factors concerning the finances of this
fund have already been addressed in the discussion of the Village’s government-wide
financial statements.

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

A comparison of budget and actual expenditures for the General Fund is as follows:

Budget Actual
General Fund $2,360,253  §1,998,091

The budget was passed on April 7, 2014 and was amended on January 5, 2015.



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Land $ 83840 % 87406 § 305,539 § 279,630 §$ 389,379 % 367,036
Buildings and

Improvements 610,983 579,145 7,280,939 7,250,899 7,901,922 7,830,044
Swimming Pool - - 1,064,420 1,064,420 1,064,420 1,064,420
Infrastructure 277,427 277427 - - 277,427 277,427
Distribution and

Collection Systems - - 13,925,385 13,825,879 13,925,385 13,825,879
Vehicles and

Equipment 685,967 617,189 2,267,509 2,014,324 2,953,476 2,631,513

$ 1658217 § 15601067 § 24853792 § 24435152 § 26,512,009 § 25996319

The Village’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type
activities as of March 31, 2015, amounts to $12,306,925, net of accumulated
depreciation. This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and
improvements, equipment, vehicles and infrastructure. The total outlay for capital assets
for the current year was $546,235. The largest additions in the current year were a new
server, electrical line additions, sewer line additions, a bucket truck, and several new
police vehicles. These additions were offset by current year depreciation expense of
$1,069,757, thereby resulting in a net decrease in net capital assets for the current year.
Additional information related to capital assets can be found in Note 7 of the financial
statements.

Long-term Debt

At the end of 2015, the Village had total long-term debt obligations for governmental
activities and business-type activities in the amount of $1,813,885 and §$5,285,116,
respectively, compared to $1,360,000 and $5,745,934 at the end of 2014.

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total
March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Loans Payable $ - 3 - % 748668 % 817,767 % 748,668 § 817,767
Notes Payable 33,885 - 196,448 238,167 230,333 238,167
Bonds Payable 1,780,000 1,360,000 4,340,000 4,650,000 6,120,000 6,050,000
Total Debt $ 1813885 § 13600000 $ 5285116 § 5745934 § 7,099,000 § 7,105,934

The governmental activities reported increases in long-term debt of $453,885. The
business-type activities reported a decrease in long-term debt of $460,818. All reductions
were due to scheduled debt retirements. The Village issued new debt in the current fiscal
year to refund prior TIF bonds and to pay off two TIF agreements. Additional
information related to long-term debt can be found in Note 6 of the financial statements.
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG., ILLINOIS
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Village of
Freeburg’s finances for all those with an interest in the Village’s finances. Questions
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional
financial information should be addressed to the Village Clerk’s Office, 14 Southgate
Center, Freeburg, IL 62243.
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
(BUSINESS -TYPE ACTIVITIES - ACCRUAL BASIS)
(GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES - MODIFIED CASH BASIS)
MARCH 31, 2015

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,569,049 $ 1,471,687 $ 3,040,736
Investments 184,473 2,125,274 2,309,747
Receivables (Net of allowance
for uncollectible): ' - 625,546 625,546
Prepaid Expenses - 46,969 46,969
Internal Balances (43) 43 -
Capital Assets:
Land 83,840 305,539 389,379
Buildings and Improvements 610,983 7,290,939 7,901,922
Swimming Pool - 1,064,420 1,064,420
Infrastructure 277,427 - 271,427
Distribution and Collection Systems - 13,925,385 13,925,385
Vehicles and Equipment 685,967 2,267,509 2,953,476
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (867,951) (13,337,133) (14,205,084)
Net Capital Assets 790,266 11,516,659 12,306,925
Total Assets $ 2,543,745 $ 15,786,178 $ 18,329,923
Liabilities
Cash Deficit 5 - $ 294,200 $ 294,200
Accounts Payable 3,423 278,876 282,299
Accrued Salaries - 24,495 24,495
Accrued Interest - 33,894 33,804
Customer Deposits - 152,869 152,869
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due Within One Year 183,885 438,680 622,565
Due In More Than One Year 1,630,000 4,846,436 6,476,436
Total Liabilities 1,817,308 6,069,450 7,886,758

Net Position

Invested in Capital Assets,

Net of Related Debt 790,266 6,231,543 7,021,809
Restricted 706,997 - 706,997
Committed 35,402 - 35,402
Unrestricted (806,228) 3,485,185 2,678,957

Total Net Position $ 726,437 $ 9,716,728 § 10,443,165

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND ‘
FUND BALANCES ARISING FROM MODIFIED CASH BASIS TRANSACTIONS

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
MARCH 31, 2015

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalentis
Investments
Due from Other Funds

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Equity
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds
Total Liabilities

Fund Equity:
Fund Balance:
Restricted
Unassigned

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and
Fund Equity

Other Total
Governmental Govermmental

General Funds Funds
$ 969,191 $ 564,456 § 1,533,647
40,608 143,865 184,473
1,281 - 1,281
$ 1,011,080 $ 708,321 $ 1,719,401
$ 3,423 $ - $ 3,423
- 1,324 1,324
3,423 1,324 4,747
- 706,997 706,997
1,007,657 - 1,007,657
1,007,657 706,997 1,714,654
$ 1,011,080 $ 708,321 $ 1,719,401

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF ASSETS,
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES ARISING FROM MODIFIED

CASH BASIS TRANSACTIONS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

Amounts reported for governmental fund balances are different because:

Fund balances - total governmental funds $ 1,714,654
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported on the balance sheet of the
governmental funds. 790,266
Long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) is not reported as a liability on the
balance sheet of the governmental funds. (1,813,885)
Internal service funds are included in the statement of net position in the
government wide financial statements as these funds benefit the general
government as a whole. 35,402
Net position of governmental activities $ 726437

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES
ARISING FROM MODIFIED CASH BASIS TRANSACTIONS
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

Revenues:

Property Tax

Utility Tax

Intergovernmental:
Replacement Tax
Sales Tax.
State Income Tax
Local Use Tax
Telecommunications Tax
Motor Fuel Tax
Grants

Franchise Fees

Licenses and Permits

Fines and Penalties

Garbage Collection

Rental/Lease Income

[nvestment Earnings

Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
General Government
Public Safety:
Police
Civil Defense
Highways and Streets
Development
Sanitation
Debt Service:
Principal
Interest and Charges
Capital Qutlay
Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from Fixed Asset Sales
Proceeds from Debt
Payment to Escrow Refunding Agent
Operating Transfers

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Excess of Revenues and Other
Financing Sources Over Expenditures

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year

Fund Balance, End of Year

Other Total
Governmental  Governmental

General Funds Funds
$ 431,356 $ 234314 $ 665,670
240,515 - 240,515
5,658 - 5,658
366,991 - 366,991
412,333 - 412,333
85,062 - 85,062
108,713 - 108,713
- 107,544 107,544
29,298 33,630 62,928
29,252 - 29,252
53,118 - 53,118
12,695 - 12,695
210,602 - 210,602
6,205 . 6,205
2,764 5,827 8,591
12,100 - 12,100
2,006,662 381,315 2,387,977
252,509 - 252,509
1,061,199 - 1,061,199
3,528 - 3,528
347,425 105,088 452,513
- 474,174 474,174
184,946 - 184,946
- 170,000 170,000
- 103,445 103,445
127,595 - 127,595
1,977,202 852,707 2,829,909
29,460 (471,392) (441,932)
364,347 - 364,347
33,885 1,950,000 1,983,885
- (1,392,120) (1,392,120)
(20,889) o (20,889)
377,343 557,880 935,223
406,803 86,488 493,291
600,854 620,509 1,221,363
$ 1,007,657 $ 706,997 § 1,714,654

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES AND
EXPENDITURES ARISING FROM MODIFIED CASH BASIS
TRANSACTIONS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 493,291

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over
their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This
balance represents the amount of these differences as reported in these
financial statements,
45,811

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current
financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the
principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources
of governmental funds. Also, governmental funds report the effect of
issuance costs, premiums, discounts and similar items when debt is
issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the
statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of those
differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

(453,885)

Activity related to the internal service funds are included in the
statement of net position in the government wide financial statements

as these funds benefit the general government as a whole. .

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 1205619

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables:
Customers
Unbilled Revenue
Other
Due From Other Funds
Prepaid Insurance
Total Current Assets

Capital Assets:
Land
Buildings and Improvements
Swimming Pool

Distribution and Collection Systems

Vehicles and Equipment

Less - Accumulated Depreciation
Net Capital Assets

Total Assets

Liabilities
Current Liabilities:
Cash Deficit
Accounts Payable
Accrued Salaries
Accrued Interest
Current Portion of Long Term Debt
Customer Deposits

Total Current Liabilities

Moncurrent Liabilities:
Long Term Debt (Net of Current)
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Position
Invested in Capital Assets,
Net of Related Debt
Committed
Unreserved
Total Net Position

Total Liabilities and
Net Position

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this stalement

VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
MARCH 31, 2015

Mejor Funds Govermmental
Electric Activities -

Light and Swimming Internal
Power Waterworks Sewer Pool Total Service Fund
$ 414,111 $ 707,502 $ 350,074 $ - $ 1,471,687 § 35402
1,689,000 301,618 134,650 - 2,125,274 -
295,610 47,420 28,857 - 371,887 -
189,903 37,332 21,544 - 248,719 -
4,880 - - 4,880 -
43 - - - 43 -
36,612 5,065 5,292 - 46,969 -
2,630,159 1,098,937 540,423 - 4,269,519 35402
211,375 50,094 37,820 6,250 305,539 -
6,220,376 - 940,175 130,388 7,290,939 -
- - - 1,064,420 1,064,420 -
8,065,683 3,742,638 2,117,064 - 13,925,385 -
1,420,603 456,402 350,445 40,059 2,267,509 -
15,918,037 4,249,134 3,445,504 1,241,117 24,853,792 -
8,471,695 2,987,719 1,534,663 343,056 13,337,133 -
7,446,342 1,261,415 1,910,841 898,061 11,516,659 -
$ 10,076,501 $ 2,360,352 $ 2,451,264 § 898,061 $ 15,786,178 $ 35402
$ - $ 2 $ - § 294,200 $ 294,200 5 -
248,296 25,963 4,556 61 278,876 -
14,905 4,720 4,870 - 24,495 -
26,973 - - 6,921 33,894 -
350,113 6,414 52,153 30,000 438,680 -
87,608 38,081 27,180 - 152,869 -

727,895 75,178 88,759 331,182 1,223,014

3,706,335 20,376 669,725 450,000 4,846,436 -
3,706,335 20,376 669,725 450,000 4,846,436 -
4,434,230 95,554 758,484 781,182 6,069,450 -
3,389,894 1,234,625 1,188,963 418,061 6,231,543 -
- - - - - 35,402
2,252,371 1,030,173 503,817 (301,182) 3,485,185 -
5,642,271 2,264,798 1,692,780 116,879 9,716,728 35,402
$ 10,076,501 $ 2,360,352 $ 2,451,264 § 898,061 § 15,786,178 § 35402
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Qperating Revenue:
Charges for Services
Connection Fees
Supplies Sold
Miscellaneous

Total Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses:
Personal Services

Contractua! Services and Other
Electricity and Water Purchased

Supplies and Materials
Heat, Light and Power
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income (Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):

Property Taxes
Interest Income

Interest Expense

Total Nonoperating Revenues

(Expenses)
Operating Transfers

Change in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning of Year

Net Position, End of Year

VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

Major Funds Governmental
Electric Activities -
Light and Swimming Internal
Power Waterworks Sewer Pool Total Service Fund
$ 4,860,565 $ 816970 § 472,611 $ 46,694  § 6,196,840 $ -
7,220 4,570 2,250 - 14,040 -
34,021 15,981 831 16,046 66,879
64,977 9,695 - - 74,672 -
4,966,783 847,216 475,692 62,740 6,352,431 -
701,931 263,332 234,810 50,348 1,252,421 -
418,531 74,646 91,229 3,665 588,071 -
2,936,617 346,507 - - 3,283,124 -
89,467 38,932 39,557 19,364 187,320 -
14,381 4,400 17,712 - 36,493 -
669,069 172,210 89,660 60,600 991,539 -
4,829,996 902,027 472,968 133,977 6,338,968
136,787 (54,811) 2,724 (71,237) 13,463
. - . 53,282 53,282 -
63,043 16,334 9,252 6 88,635 -
(90,466) (502) (24,610) (21,321) (137,299) -
{27,423) 15,432 (15,358) 31,967 4,618 -
(10,209) (2,479) (1,825) - (14,513) 35,402
99,155 (41,858) (14,459) (39,270} 3,568 35,402
5,543,116 2,306,656 1,707,239 156,149 0,713,160 -
$ 5,642,271 $2264,798 § 1,692,780 § 116,879 $ 9,716,728 $ 35,402
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

I Major Funds Governimental

: Electric Activities -
‘ Light and Swimming Internal
Power Waterworks Sewer Pool Total Service Fund
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Cash Received from Customers $ 4928169 % 851,389  § 471482 $ 62,740 § 6,313,780 $ -
Cash Paid to Suppliers (3,664,705) (548,172) (222,970) (29,194) (4,465,041) -
Cash Payments to Employees for Services (519,843) (188,668) (162,465} (44,150 {915,126) -
Net Cash Provided (Used) By
Operating Activities 743,621 114,549 86,047 (10,604) 933,613 -
Cash Flows from Capital Financing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets (226,332) (96,729) (84,175) (11,404) (418,640) -
Principal Paid on Debt (361,719) (6,235) (62,864) (30,000) (460,818) -
Interest Paid on Debt (91477) (902) (24,610) (21,570} (138,559) -
Net Cash Provided (Used) By
Capital Financing Activities (679,528) (103,866) (171,649) (62,974) (1,018,017) -
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of Certificate of Deposit - (6,072) - - (6,072) -
Interest Income 63,043 16,334 9,252 6 88,635 -
Net Cash Provided (Used) By
Investing Activities 63,043 10,262 9,252 6 82,563 -
Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities
Payments From (To) Other Funds (7,928) (2,479) (1,825) B (12,232) 35,402
Property Tax - - - 53,282 53,282 -
: Customer Deposits (11,146) 1,858 (260) - (9,548) -
ft Net Cash Provided By '
i Non-Capital Financing Activities . (19,074) (621) (2,085) 53,282 31,502 35,402
i Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
i and Cash Equivalents 108,062 20,324 (78,435) (20,290) 29,661 35,402
|
. Cash and Cash Equivalents,
| Beginning of Year 306,049 687,178 428,509 {273,910) 1,147,826 -

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 3 414,111 § 707,502 $ 350,074 $(294,200) $ 1,177,487 $ 35402

The notes to the financial statements are an infegral part of this statement
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET
CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2015

Major Funds Governmental
Electric Activities -
Light end Swimming Internal
Power Waterworks Sewer Pool Total Service Fund
Operating Income (Loss) $ 136,787 % (54811) § 2724 § (71,237) § 13,463 $ -
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating
Income (Loss) to Net Cash
Provided by Operating Activities:
Depreciation 669,069 172,210 85,660 60,600 '991,539 -
Decrease (Increase) in:
Accounts Receivable (27,306) (143) (1,690) - (29,139) -
Other Receivables 7,898 9,695 . - 17,593 -
Unbilled Revenue (13,356) (5,379) (2,520) - (21,255) -
Prepaid Insurance 5,493 35 (322) - 5,206 -
Increase (Decrease) in:
Accounts Payable (31,850) (7,648) (3,089) 33 (42,554) -
Unearned Revenue (5,850) - - - (5,850) -
Accrued Salaries 2,736 590 1,284 - 4,610 -
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Operating Activities § 743,621 § 114,549 § 86047 $§ (10,604) § 933,613 5 -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral pari of this statement
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MARCH 31, 2015

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Village of Freeburg, Illinois have been
prepared in conformity with the modified cash basis of accounting for the
Governmental Fund Types and the accrual basis of accounting for the
Proprietary Fund Types as applied to government units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body
for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles.

The more significant of the government’s accounting policies are described
below.

(a)

®

Financial reporting entity

The Village’s combined financial statements include the accounts of all
Village operations. The criteria for including organizations as
component units within the Village’s reporting entity, as set forth in
Section 2100 of GASB’s Codification of Governmental Accounting and
Financial Reporting Standards, include whether:

e the organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued in their
own name)

the Village holds the corporate powers of the organization

the Village appoints a voting majority of the organization’s board
the Village is able to impose its will on the organization

the organization has the potential to impose a financial
benefit/burden on the Village

o there is fiscal dependency by the organization on the Village

The Village has determined that no other outside agency meets the
above criteria and therefore, no other agency has been included as a
component unit in the Village’s financial statements. In addition, the
Village is not aware of any entity that would exercise such oversight,
which would result in the Village being considered a component unit of
the entity.

Government-wide and fund financial statements

The government-wide financial statements (the statement of net position
and the statement of activities) report information on all of the
nonfiduciary activities of the government. Governmental activities,
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(©)

which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues,
are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct
expenses of a given function are offset by program revenues. Direct
expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or
segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or
applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or
privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items,
properly not included among program revenues, are reported instead as
general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and
proprietary funds. Major individual governmental funds and major
individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial statement
presentation

The proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon
as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified cash basis of
accounting. Accordingly, receipts are recorded when cash is received
and disbursements are recorded when checks are written. Only assets
representing a right to receive cash arising from a previous payment of
cash are recorded as assets of a fund. In the same manner, only liabilities
resulting from previous cash transactions are recorded as liabilities of a
particular fund. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for
which they are received.

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the same

basis of accounting as used by the individual funds in the fund financial
statements.
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The government reports the following major governmental fund:

The General Fund is the Village’s primary operating fund. It
accounts for all financial resources of the general government,
except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The Village reports the following major proprietary funds:

The Water Fund and the Sewer Fund accounts for all activities
related to the billing, administration, distribution and collection
processes of the water and sewer utilities. The Village operates the
water distribution system as well as the sewage treatment plant,
sewage pumping stations and collection systems.

The Electric Light and Power Fund accounts for all activities related
to the billing, administration and distribution processes of the
Village’s electric and power operations,

The Swimming Pool Fund accounts for all activities related to
administration and collection processes of the Village’s swimming
pool operations.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from
the government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule
are reimbursements between funds for direct costs applicable to the other
fund. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and
program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from
nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result
from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection
with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal
operating revenues of the Village’s enterprise funds are charges to
customers for sales and services. The Village also recognizes as operating
revenue the portion of tap fees intended to recover the cost of connecting
new customers to the system. Operating expenses for enterprise funds
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.
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@

Assets, liabilities and net assets or equity

Deposits and investments

The Village’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on
hand, demand deposits, certificates of deposits and short-term investments
with original maturities of three months or less.

The Village is authorized by state statute to invest in obligations of the
United States of America, insured interest bearing accounts of banks,
savings and loan associations or credit unions, certain short-term
obligations of corporations organized in the United States, money market
mutual funds that invest in obligations of the United States of America or
its agencies or are guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the United
States of America, the Illinois Funds and repurchase agreements of
government securities. Investment income is recognized as earned.

Receivables and payables

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing
arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as
“due to/from other funds” Any residual balances outstanding between the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the
government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”

Unbilled electric, water, and sewer utility receivables related to the
business-type activities are recorded at year-end. They are determined by
taking cycle billings subsequent to March 31 and prorating the applicable
number of days to the current fiscal year.

The Village records accounts receivable in the Statement of Net Position
for amounts that are due to the Village but have not been received at year-
end. Accounts receivable are largely comprised of billed and unbilled
amounts for utilities in the business-type activities. These balances are
considered fully collectible at year-end.

Capital assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant and equipment, are reported
in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the
government-wide financial statements. The government defines capital
assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $500 and an
estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.
Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the
date of donation.
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The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value
of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as
projects when constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase
of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the
capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment are depreciated using the straight line
method over the following estimated useful lives:

Type of Property Estimated

and Equipment Useful Lives

Buildings and Improvements 15— 40 Years

Infrastructure 40 Years

Swimming Pool 20 Years
Distribution and Collection

Systems . 15-50 Years

Vehicles and Equipment 5-10 Years

Compensated absences

Sick leave is accrued for all employees at the rate of 1 day per month. On
January 1 of the year an employee celebrates their fifth year employment
anniversary, and all years thereafter, employees shall be granted twelve
sick days. Sick leave can be carried forward, but not to exceed 65 work
days. All full-time employees of the Village who have been employed for
at least one (1) full year shall become eligible for vacation as indicated by

the following table:
Vacation
Service Allowed
Having Completed 1 Year 5 Working Days
2-8 Years Continuous 10 Working Days
9-17 Years Continuous 15 Working Days
18 or More Years Continuous 20 Working Days

1 day for each year over
18 years of service

An employee separated from the service of the Village shall be
compensated for all unused vacation leave accumulated prior to his/her
effective date of separation but not for accumulated sick leave. Any
liability at March 31, 2015 is immaterial.
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Long-term obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and enterprise fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities in the statement of net position.

Fund equity
In the fund financial statements, the Village classifies the governmental

fund balances based upon the following criteria:

Nonspendable ~ includes amounts that cannot be spent because
they are either 1) not in spendable form, or 2) legally or
contractually required to remain intact.

Restricted — balances with constraints that are either externally
imposed by creditors or imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed — balances that are to be only used for specific
purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the
government’s highest level of decision-making authority.

Assigned — balances that are constrained by the government’s
intent to be used for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor
committed.

Unassigned — the residual classification of the General Fund
balance.

The following details the description and amount of all constraints
recorded by the Village in the fund financial statements:

Governmental Funds

Restricted:
Tax Increment Financing District $ 380,904
Motor Fuel Tax Fund 298,512
Impact Fees Fund 27,581
Total Restricted $ 706,997
Committed:
Internal Service Fund $ 35402
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(¢) Budgetary Control

Budgets are adopted on a basis consistent with the cash basis of
accounting. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for all governmental
funds. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.

On April 7, 2014 the Village Board approved an ordinance adopting the
appropriations which is the budgetary data reflected in these financial
statements. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management
control device during the year for the General Fund and Special Revenue
Funds. The budget was amended on January 5, 2015,

(f) Risk Management

The Village is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; thefts of,
damage to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions and natural
disasters for which the Village carries commercial insurance. There have
been no significant reductions in coverage from the prior year and
settlements have not exceeded coverages in the past three yeats.

(z) Estimates

The Village uses estimates and assumptions in preparing these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. These estimates and assumptions affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the reported revenues and
expenditures. Actual results could vary from estimates that were used.

NOTE 2: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

At March 31, 2015, the carrying amount of the Village's deposits was
$4,912.269 and the bank balance was $5,004,818. The deposits were
comprised of checking, interest checking, money market funds and certificates
of deposit.

Custodial Credit Risk. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a
bank failure, the Village’s deposits may not be returned to it. As of March 31,
2015, cash deposit balances of $4,640,468, which were in excess of FDIC
insurance, were collateralized with investments by the financial institution.
Cash deposit balances of $3,770 were in excess of FDIC insurance and were
not collateralized with other investments.

Interest Rate Risk. The Village’s investment policy limits investment
maturities in order to maintain sufficient liquidity to reflect the cash flow
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NOTE 3:

needs of the fund type being invested. The Village only maintains investments
in the Illinois Funds, which is an external investment pool.

The Illinois Funds are pooled investments that are operated by the State of
Ilinois as a not-for-profit common law {rust and are not registered with the
SEC. The funds are monitored regularly through the State by internal and
external audits. The goals of the funds are to provide liquidity and to maintain
balances that are equal fo the par value of the invested shares with no loss to
market fluctuations. The fair value of the Village's position in the pool is the
same as the value of the pool shares.

At March 31, 2015, the Village had the following investments:

Weighted Average
Investment Maturity (Days) Fair Value

The Illinois Funds (external investment pool) Daily $ 143,399
Petty Cash 615
Deposits as reported above 4,912,269
Total deposits and investments $ 5,056,283
As Reported in the Statement of Net Position:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 3,040,736

Investments 2,309,747

Cash Deficit (294,200)

$ 5,056,283

Credit Risk. As of March 31, 2015, the credit rating of the Village’s
investment was as follows:

Standard & Moody's Investors
Investment Poor's Rating Service Rating
The llinois Funds (external investment pool) AAAmM -

Concentration of Credit Risk. As of March 31, 2015, the Village did not have
a concentration of credit risk.

Foreign Currency Risk. As of March 31, 2015, the Village has no foreign
currency risk.

RETIREMENT FUND COMMITMENTS

(a) Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund

Plan Description. The Village’s defined benefit pension plan for regular
employees provides retirement and disability benefits, post retirement

29



VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

increases, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. The Plan
is affiliated with the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent
multiple-employer plan. Benefit provisions are established by statute and
may only be changed by the General Assembly of the State of Illineis.
IMRF issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information. The report may be
obtained on-line at www.imrf.org.

Funding Policy. As set by statute, members are required to contribute 4.50
percent of their annual covered salary. The statute requires employers to
contribute the amount necessary, in addition to member contributions, to
finance the retirement coverage of its own employees. The employer
annual required contribution rate for calendar year 2014 was 12.49
percent. The employer also contributes for disability benefits, death
benefits and supplemental retirement benefits, all of which are pooled at
the TMRF level. Contribution rates for disability and death benefits are set
by the IMRF Board of Trustees, while the supplemental retirement
benefits rate is set by statute.

Annual Pension Cost. The required contribution for calendar year 2014

was $195,339.
Three-Year Trend Information for IMRF
Fiscal Annual  Percentage Net
Year Pension of APC Pension

Ending Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation

3/31/2015  § 197,626 100% $ 59584
3/31/2014 189,126 100% 5,872
3/31/2013 182,594 100% 5,755

The required contribution for 2014 was determined as part of the
December 31, 2012, actuarial valuation using the entry age normal
actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions at December 31, 2012,
included (a) 7.50% investment rate of return (net of administrative and
direct investment expenses), (b) projected salary increases of 4.00% a
year, attributable to inflation, (c) additional projected salary increases
ranging from 0.4% to 10.0% per year depending on age and service,
attributable to seniority/merit, and (d) post-retirement benefit increases of
3% annually. The actuarial value of plan assets was determined using
techniques that spread the effects of shori-term volatility in the market
value of investments over a five-year period with a 20% corridor between
the actuarial and market value of assets. The Village’s unfunded actuarial
accrued liability at December 31, 2012 is being amortized as a level
percentage of projected payroll on an open 29 year basis.
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Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of December 31, 2014, the most
recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was 79.98 percent funded. The
actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $3,845,904 and the actuarial
value of assets was $3,076,058, resulting in an underfunded actuarial
accrued liability (UAAL) of $769,846. The covered payroll for calendar
year 2014 (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was
$1,563,966 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 49
percent.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to
the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information about

. whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over
time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

(b)Social Security

All employees, including those qualifying for coverage under the Illinois
Municipal Retirement Fund, are covered under Social Security. The
Village paid $132,400, the required contribution for the current fiscal year.

NOTE 4: INTERKFUND BALANCES

The following funds have interfund balances as of March 31, 2015.

General Fund due from (to):

Motor Fuel Tax Fund $1,324

Electric Light and Power Fund (43)
Electric Light and Power Fund due from (to):

General Fund 43
Motor Fuel Tax Fund due from (to):

General Fund (1,324)

NOTE 5: PROPERTY TAXES

The Village’s property tax is levied each year on all taxable real property
located in the Village on or before the second Tuesday in December. The
Board passed the levy on November 17, 2014. Property taxes attach as an
enforceable lien on property as of January 1 and are payable in two
installments. The County had not mailed tax bills as of March 31, 2015. Past
mailing practices of the County have been subsequent to March 31 of each
year. The Village begins to receive significant distributions of tax receipts in
June and July after the bills are mailed by the County. The Village budgets
and records property tax revenue in the year the property taxes are received.
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The following are the tax rates applicable to the various levies per $100 of

assessed valuation:

Maximum
Levy
Tax Rates:
General $ 02500
Bonds and Interest None
IMRF None
Police Protection 0.0750
Audit None

Civil Defense (ESDA) 0.0500
Total

Assessed Valuations

Tax Extensions:
General
Bonds and Interest
IMRF
Police Protection
Audit
Civil Defense (ESDA)

Total
Tax Collections

Percent Collected

NOTE 6: LONG-TERM DEBT .

The Village has the following long-term debt as of March 31, 2015.

Bonds Payable

201 2013 2012
$ 01729 § 0.1554  § 0.1453
0.0650 0.0667 0.0662
0.1869 0.1793 0.1668
0.0738 0.0739 0.0378
0.0105 0.0118 0.0081
0.0031 0.0026 0.0022
$ 0.5122  § 04897 § 0.4264
$ 80,714,939  § 79,921,537 $ 81,648,135
$ 139556 5 124,198 $ 118,635
52,465 53,308 54,051
150,836 143,299 136,189
59,568 59,062 30,863
8,475 9,431 6,614
2,502 2,078 1,796
$ 413422 § 391,376 § 348,148
$ - $ 391,180 $ 348,850
0.00% 99.95% 100.20%

$550,000 General Obligation Bonds, Series 2011 dated July 20, 2011, due in
annual installments of $30,000 to $50,000 through December 1, 2026; interest
at 2.75% to 5.25%. The amount of bonds outstanding as of March 31, 2015 is
$480,000. These bonds are being retired by the Swimming Pool Fund.

$4,780,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 dated
September 13, 2012, due in annual installments of $320,000 to $395,000
through December 1, 2025; interest at 1.10% to 2.85%. The amount of bonds
outstanding as of March 31, 2015 is $3,860,000. These bonds are being retired
by the Electric Light and Power Fund. This issue refunded Series 2005 Bonds.
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$1,950,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Seties 2014 dated April 29,
2014, due in semi-annual installments of $150,000 to $185,000 through
November 1, 2025; interest at 0.50% to 3.30%. The amount of bonds
outstanding as of March 31, 2015 is $1,780,000. These bonds are being retired
by the TIF Fund. This issue refunded Series 2005 Tax Increment Revenue
Bonds.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for bonds are as follows:

Year Ended Governmental Business-type
April 30, Activities Activities
Principal Interest Principal Interest

2016 $ 150,000 $ 38298 $ 350,000 $ 101,962
2017 150,000 37,547 360,000 07,618
2018 - 150,000 36,348 365,000 92,667
2019 155,000 34,622 365,000 86,857
2020 155,000 32,220 375,000 80,100

2021-2025 835,000 105,852 2,030,000 256,878

2026-2027 185,000 6,105 495,000 19,069

$ 1,780,000 $ 290,992  §$ 4,340,000 § 735,151

[EPA Loans

$104,816 loan with the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency to be repaid
with semiannual payments of $3,568 through March 2019, including interest
at 2.865%. The loan was used to assist the Water Fund in the construction of a
waterline extension. The balance outstanding as of March 31, 2015 is
$26,790.

$479,822 loan with the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency to be repaid
with semi-annual installments of $15,765, including interest at 2.535%. The
loan was used to assist in the construction of sanitary sewer lines and an
excess flow clarifier at the West Sewage Treatment Plant. The balance
outstanding as of March 31, 2015 is $174,469.

$583,674 loan with the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency to be repaid
with semi-annual installments of $18,648, including interest at 2.925%. The
loan was used to assist in the construction of sewer lines on North State Street.
The balance outstanding as of March 31, 2015 is $547,409.
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Annual debt service requirements to maturity for EPA Loans are as follows:

Year Ended
April 30, EPA Loans
Principal Interest
2016 3 58,567 § 17,394
2017 60,022 15,939
2018 61,514 14,447
2019 63,044 12,915
2020 57,423 11,403
2021-2025 176,934 41,078
2026-2030 163,636 22,844
2031-2033 107,528 4,360

$ 748668 § 140,380

Notes Payable

$225,618 loan with Citizens Community Bank to be repaid with annual
payments of $36,464 through July 2020, including interest at 3.182%. The
Joan was used to purchase a Bucket/Pole Truck for the Electric Light and
Power Fund. The balance outstanding as of March 31, 2015 is $196,448.

$33,885 loan with Citizens Community Bank to be repaid with annual
payments of $34,913 through September 2015, including interest at 2.99%.
The loan was used to purchase a Police Vehicle for the General Fund, The
balance outstanding as of March 31, 2015 is $33,885.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for notes payable are as follows:

Year Ended Governmental Business-type
April 30, Activities Activities
Principal Interest Principal Interest
2016 $ 33,885 § 1,013 $ 30,113 § 6,351
2017 - - 31,072 5,393
2018 - - 32,0091 4,373
2019 - - 33,129 3,336
2020 - - 34,200 2,264
2021 - - 35,843 1,162

$ 33885 § 1,013 5 196448 § 22,879
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The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the year ended
March 31, 2015,

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Business-type Activities:
Bonds Payable $ 4,690,000 § - § 350,000 $ 4,340,000 $ 350,000
Notes Payable 238,167 - 41,719 196,448 30,113
EPA Loans 817.767 - 69.099 748.663 58.567
$ 5745934 § - $ 460,818 $ 5285116 § 438,680

Governmental Activities:
Bonds Payable $ 1,360,000 $ 1,950,000 § 1,530,000 % 1,780,000 § 150,000
Notes Payable - 33.885 - 33.885 33.885

$ 1,360,000 $ 1,983,885 $ 1,530,000 § 1,813,885 §$ 183,885

On April 29, 2014, the Village issued $1,950,000 in 2014 General Obligation
Refunding Bonds with interest rates of 0.40% to 3.30% to advance refund
$1,360,000 of outstanding 2005 Tax Increment Revenue Bonds with interest
rates of 4.75% to 5.75% and $474,174 of outstanding note balances related to
a redevelopment agreement. The net proceeds of $1,866,294 were used to
purchase U.S. government securities. Those securities were deposited in an-
irrevocable trust with an escrow agent to provide for the future debt service
payments on the Tax Increment Revenue Bonds. The 2005 Bonds were called
on April 30, 2014,

The advance refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price
and the net carrying amount of the old debt of $83,706. The City completed
the advance refunding to reduce its total debt service payments by $379,384
and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the
old and new debt service payments) of $144,199,
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NOTE 7: CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended March 31, 2015 was as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases  Decreases Balance

Governmental activities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 87,406 § - 8 3566 % 83,840
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 579,145 31,838 - 610,983

Infrastructure 277,427 - - 277,427

Vehicles and equipment 017,189 95,757 26,979 685,967
Total capital assets being depreciated 1,473,761 127,595 26,979 1,574,377
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Building and improvements 287,821 20,605 - 308,426

Infrastructure 28,078 6,842 - 34,920

Vehicles and equipment 500,813 50,771 26,979 524,605
Total accumulated depreciation 816,712 78.218 26.979 867.951
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 657,049 49,377 - 706.426
Governmental activities capital assets, net $ 744455 $ 40377 $ 3,566 § 790,266
Business-type aclivities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:

Land $ 279,630 § 25909 § - § 305539
Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 7,250,859 83,220 - 7,334,119

Swimming pool 1,064,420 - - 1,064,420

Distribution and collection system 13,825,879 56,326 - 13,882,205

Vehicles and equipment 2,014,324 253,185 - 2,267,509
Total capital assets, being depreciated 24.155,522 392,731 - 24548253
Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements 4,138,733 224,219 - 4,362,952

Swimming pool 207,740 49,103 - 256,843

Distribution and coliection systein 6,808,567 565,332 - 7,373,899

Vehicles and equipment 1,190,554 152,885 - 1.343.439
Total accumulated depreciation 12,345,594 991,539 - 13,337,133
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 11.809.928 (598.808) - 11,211,120
Business-type activities capital assets, net $ 12,089,558 § (572,899) § - § 11,516,659
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary
government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 19,324
Public safety 33,226
Highways and streets 24,333
Sanitation 1,335
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 78218

Business-type activities:

Electric light and power ’ $ 669,069
Water 172,210
Sewer 89,660
Swimming pool 60,600
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 991,539

NOTE 8: SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The Village has evaluated events occurring after the financial statement date
through August 15, 2015 in order to determine their potential for recognition
or disclosure in the financial statements. The latter date is the same date the
financial statements were available to be issued.
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BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
MODIFIED CASH BASIS
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

Actual
Budgeted Amounts (Budget
Original Final Basis)
Revenues:
Property Tax $ 641,825 $ 641,825 $ 431,356
Replacement Tax 5,200 5,200 5,658
Sales Tax 390,000 390,000 366,991
State Income Tax 420,000 420,000 412,333
Local Use Tax 66,000 66,000 85,062
Telecommunications Tax 145,000 145,000 108,713
Franchise Tax 30,500 30,500 29,252
Utility Tax 230,000 230,000 240,515
Licenses and Permits 47,300 47,300 53,118
Fines and Penalties 14,650 14,650 12,695
Garbage Collection 210,200 210,200 210,602
Rental/Lease Income 12,000 12,000 6,205
Investment Earnings 2,000 2,000 2,764
Grants 62,855 62,855 29,298
Miscellaneous 81,019 81,019 410,332
Total Revenues 2,358,549 2,358,549 2,404,894
Expenditures:
Current:
General Government 489,673 491,088 252,509
Public Safety:
Police 1,094,620 1,094,620 1,061,199
Civil Defense 4,100 4,100 3,528
Highways and Streets 360,010 374,150 347,425
Sanitation 206,700 206,700 184,946
Capital Outlay 189,595 189,595 127,595
Transfers - - 20,889
Total Expenditures 2,344,698 2,360,253 1,998,091
Net Change in Fund Balances $ 13,851 $ (1,704) 406,803
No change for modified cash basis reporting -
As reported on the Statement of Revenues and Expenditures
Arising From Modified Cash Basis Transactions $ 406,803
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Actuarial Value of Assets

Actuariel Accrued Liability (AAL)

Unfunded AAL (UAAL)
Funded Ratio
Covered Payroll
UAAL as a % of Covered Payroll
Employer Contributions:
Required
Made

Percentage of Employer Contributions
Made to Required Contributions

YILLAGE OF FREEBURG, JLLINOIS

SCHEDULE OF ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT
FUNDING PROGRESS AND EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
MARCH 31, 2015

Calendar Year

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

$ 3,076,058 $ 2,862,966 $ 2764210 § 2,361,731 $ 2,030,891 § 2,177,881

3,845,904 3,666,344 3,859,604 3,423,406 3,072,278 3,183,624

769,846 803,378 1,095,394 1,061,675 1,041,387 1,005,743
79.98% 78.09% 71.62% 68.99% 66.10% 68.41%

1,563,966 1,460,174 1,422,859 1,332,823 1,338,574 1,390,880
49.22% 55.02% 76.98% 79.66% 77.80% 72.31%

195,339 186,902 177,720 161,538 155,810 142,009

195,339 186,902 177,720 161,538 150,322 142,009
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 96.00% 100.00%

On a market value basis, the actuarial value of assets as of December 31, 2014 is $3,600,732.
On a market basis, the funded ratic would be 93.63 percent,

The actuarial valuations presented are prepared by the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund using the following parameters:

Actuarial Cost Method;

Amortization Method:

Remaining Amortization Period:

Asset Valuation Method:

Actuarial Assumptions:
Interest Rate
Salary Progression
Cost of Living
Adjustments

Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost
Level Percentage of Projected Payroll

Open 29 Year Basis

Techniques that smooth the effects of volatility over a 5 year period with a 20% corridor

1.5%
4.4-14.0%

3.0%
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balance

Liabilities:
Due to Other Funds
Total Liabilities

Fund Balance:
Restricted

Total Fund Balance

Total Liabilities and
.Fund Balance

MARCH 31, 2015

Motor
Impact Fuel
Fees Tax TIF Total
7,716 175,836 380,904 564,456
19,865 124,000 - 143,865
27,581 299,836 380,904 708,321
1,324 - 1,324
- 1,324 - 1,324
27,581 298,512 380,904 706,997
27,581 298,512 380,904 706,997
27,581 209,836 380,904 708,321
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VILLAGE OF FREEBURG, ILLINOIS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
NONMAIJOR SPECIAL REVENUE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

Motor
Impact Fuel
Fees Tax TIF Total
Revenues:
Property Tax $ - $ - $ 234,314 $ 234314
Motor Fuel Tax - 107,544 - 107,544
Grants - 33,630 - 33,630
Investment Income 578 5,128 121 5,827
Total Revenues 578 146,302 234,435 381,315
Expenditures:
Current:
Highways and Streets - 105,088 - 105,088
Development - - 474,174 474,174
Debt Service:
Principal - - 170,000 170,000
Interest and Fees - - 103,445 103,445
Total Expenditures - 105,088 747,619 852,707
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over Expenditures 578 41,214 (513,184) (471,392)
Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Proceeds from Debt - - 1,950,000 1,950,000
Payment to Escrow Refunding Agent - - (1,392,120) (1,392,120)
Total Other Financing
Sources (Uses) - - 557,880 557,880
Excess of Revenues and
Other Financing Sources
Over Expenditures 578 41,214 44,696 86,488
Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 27,003 257,298 336,208 620,509
Fund Balance, End of Year $ 27,581 $ 298,512 $ 380,904 $ 706,997
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Attachment L

C. J. SCHLOSSER ). Terry Dooling
& COMPANY, L.L.C. David M. Bartosiak
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Cindy A. Tefteller

Kevin J. Tepen

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON
COMPLIANCE WITH TAX INCREMENT FINANCING ACT

To the Honorable Mayor and Board
of Trustees of the Village of
Freeburg, Illinois

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Village of Freeburg, Illinois as of
and for the year ended March 31, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the Village’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with the modified cash basis of accounting described in Note 1; this includes
determining that the modified cash basis of accounting is an acceptable basis for the preparation
of the financial statements in the circumstances. Management is also responsible for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
error or fraud.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
Accordingly we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

233 East Center Drive, P.O. Box 416 80 Edwardsville Professional Park One Westbury Drive, Suite 420
Alton, lllinois 62002 Edwardsville, lllinois 62025 St. Charles, Missouri 63301
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the cash balances of the Village of Freeburg, Illinois” Tax Increment Financing District, as
referred to in the first paragraph, as of March 31, 2015 and the revenues it received and
expenditures it paid for the year then ended on the basis of accounting described in Note 1.

Other Matters

The management of the Village of Freeburg, Illinois is responsible for the government's
compliance with laws and regulations. In connection with our audit, referred to above, we
selected and tested transactions and records to determine the government's compliance with 65
ILCS 5/11-74.4-3, "Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act".

The results of our tests indicate that for the items tested, the Village of Freeburg, Illinois,
complied with Subsection (q) of 65 ILCS 5/1 1-74.4-3, "Tax Increment Allocation
Redevelopment Act". Nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that, for the items
not tested, the Village of Freeburg, Illinois was not in compliance with Subsection (q) of 65 ILCS
5/11-74.4-3, "Tax Increment Allocation Redevelopment Act".

C'Q.S‘Wrﬂ—’((é'—r-},l.l.ﬁ_

Certified Public Accountants
Alton, Illinois

August 15,2015
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